### MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD AT COUNCIL CHAMBER -COUNTY HALL, LLANDRINDOD WELLS, POWYS ON TUESDAY, 15 JANUARY 2019

**PRESENT** 

County Councillor M R Harris (Chair)

County Councillors A W Davies, MC Alexander, P Davies, S M Hayes, R Powell and M Weale

In attendance: County Councillors Bryn Davies, Pete Roberts, for part of the meeting County Councillors Beverley Baynham and John Morris

#### 1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from County Councillor James Evans.

#### 2. MINUTES

The Leader was authorised to sign the minutes of the last meeting held on 18<sup>th</sup> December 2018 as a correct record.

#### 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest reported. Councillors who were local authority appointed school governors had a dispensation to speak and vote on the schools funding formula report.

#### 4. FORMULA REVIEW POST CONSULTATION

The Portfolio Holder for Learning and the Welsh Language outlined the reasons for the review which had been undertaken by the Formula Review Group. The formula aimed to address concerns about the level of deficit occurring in some schools and the need to ensure all schools were funded sufficiently to be able to deliver an appropriate curriculum.

The Director of Education advised that Powys had the highest gross expenditure per pupil in Wales in 2018/19 and that gross funding had increased by 4.9% between 2017/18 and 2018/19. The 2.2% net increase in funding per pupil compared favourably to the 1.6% Welsh average. He also noted that the Council spent above the Welsh Government Indicator Based Assessment and he refuted a press report that Welsh medium education was not being properly funded. He explained that the majority of schools were in deficit because some governing bodies were not managing resources effectively and the Council hadn't been allocating funds effectively. Implementing the new formula would mean that the Authority would be allocating funds effectively to individual schools in future, based on a clear rationale/ operating model, and that there would be

transparency wherever Governing Bodies spend above the notional operational model on leadership or any other heading.

County Councillor Pete Roberts responded on behalf of Scrutiny. He noted that the version of the report before Cabinet differed from that considered by Scrutiny and that it was difficult to see which of the Scrutiny recommendations had been accepted because the report had not been completed properly. The Director of Education confirmed that there would be a formal response to the Scrutiny report and that there would be a review of the impact of the changes in the first year of implementation followed by annual reviews. Clarification was provided on the Individual School Range (ISR) set by governing bodies for leadership posts. The ISR dictates the maximum funding the formula would attribute for leadership posts and not necessarily reflect what the schools were currently paying. The old and new formula both cap the funding based on the ISR and the impact of this change was circa £20k.

County Councillor Bryn Davies argued that there should be more support for Welsh medium education to address the decline in the number of Welsh speakers and that the core funding formula should fund opportunities for immersive learning whenever a pupil came into the system. Cabinet was advised that this would not be possible as an immersive stream could not be put in every school, but that funding followed pupils, so that where there was a need this was resourced. The Director acknowledged that the Welsh in Education Strategic Forum needed to be more active and he advised that it would be meeting more frequently in future.

The Director also outlined the support offered to school governing bodies and the Leader advised that a seminar to brief members on the new Funding Formula would be held in February.

RESOLVED:	Reason for Decision:
To implement the new school funding formula as set out in Appendix A1 and A2 from April 2019.	transparent resourcing of agreed
To phase implementation over two financial years.	To ease the impact of the changes on individual schools.
To maintain the link between educational policy and budget in circumstances where policy, budget or cost change through annual review.	To ensure the integrity of the funding formula is maintained.

# 5. WHQS ACHIEVEMENT AND THE ADOPTION OF DAMP AND ENERGY EFFICIENCY STRATEGIES FOR POWYS

The Leader was pleased to report that the council had successfully achieved completion of its WHQS programme. Around £72 million has been invested in the Council's housing stock in the last 7 years. The Leader thanked everyone involved in helping the Council achieve this landmark. The next phase of investment involved the adoption of a Damp Strategy and a Thermal Comfort

Strategy, to develop a 'WHQS Plus' programme, and address WHQS 'acceptable fails'. Officers explained how the works would be arranged to maximise the spend with local contractors.

RESOLVED	Reason for Decision:
That Cabinet notes the successful outcome of the WHQS programme, and approves the adoption of the Damp and Thermal Comfort Strategies.	To demonstrate the council's:  • Continue to meet statutory obligations

#### 6. FINANCIAL OVERVIEW AND FORECAST AS AT 30TH NOVEMBER 2018

Cabinet considered the Financial Overview and Forecast report for the period ended 30<sup>th</sup> November 2018.

RESOLVED	Reason for Decision
1. That the contents of the report are noted.	To monitor the council's financial performance and ensure that
2. That the grant reported in section 6.1 of the report is accepted.	approved limits and that the 3% minimum general fund reserve is
3. That given the pressure on the revenue budget the Cabinet supports the S151 Officer's requirement to control discretionary expenditure until the end of the financial year.	maintained.

## 7. CAPITAL PROGRAMME UPDATE FOR THE PERIOD TO 30TH NOVEMBER 2018

Cabinet considered the Capital Programme update for the period ended 30<sup>th</sup> November 2018.

RESOLVED	Reasons for Decision
That the contents of the report are noted by Cabinet.	To outline the capital budget position as at 30 <sup>th</sup> November 2018.
•	To ensure appropriate virements, are carried out. To align budgets with spending plans.

£500k	he	submitted	to	full
~00011	20	oabiiiittoa		
counci	I for	approval.		
	£500k counci		£500k be submitted council for approval.	

### 8. CORRESPONDENCE

There were no items of correspondence.

## 9. DELEGATED DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING

The list of delegated decisions taken by portfolio holders was noted.

## 10. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

Cabinet received the forward work programme.

**County Councillor M R Harris (Chair)**